
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
 

TOWN OF APEX  1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION  2 

TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2025  3 
3:30 P.M.  4 

    5 
The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, April 15, 2025 at 3:30 p.m. at the 6 
Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina.   7 
   8 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 9 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel:    10 
 11 
CLERK NOTE:  While this meeting took place at Apex Town Hall, part one was conducted in 12 
the Town Council Chambers on the 2nd Floor and part two was conducted in the training 13 
rooms A and B on the 3rd Floor.   14 
Part 1 -  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=N5S3jfUiCIU 15 
Part 2 - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BFJiDFzZGsc 16 
   17 
[ATTENDANCE]    18 
Elected Body      19 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)    20 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Ed Gray      21 
Councilmember Brett Gantt    22 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth     23 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey    24 
Absent: Councilmember Arno Zegerman      25 
     26 
Town Staff      27 
Town Manager Randy Vosburg      28 
Deputy Town Manager Shawn Purvis      29 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John      30 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone     31 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe      32 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman      33 
    34 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.     35 
    36 
[COMMENCMENT]     37 
     38 

Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:35 p.m., welcomed everyone, and led 39 
everyone in the pledge of allegiance.     40 
     41 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=N5S3jfUiCIU
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BFJiDFzZGsc


DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 2 of 26 
 

   [FY 2025-2026 MANAGER’S RECOMMENDED BUDGET PRESENTATION]   1 
 2 
 Town Manager Vosburg gave the following presentation: 3 
[SLIDE 1] 4 

 5 
[SLIDE 2] 6 

 7 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 3 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 4 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 5 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 9] 1 

   2 
[SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 11] 5 

  6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 6 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 12] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 13] 3 

  4 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 7 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 14] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 15] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 16] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 8 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 17] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 18] 3 

  4 
[SLIDE 19] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 9 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 20] 1 

  2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked about the S-line being unfunded. 3 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that Assistant Town Manager Stone would address that. 4 
[SLIDE 21] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 10 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 22] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 23] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 24] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 11 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 25] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 26] 3 

 4 
 Town Manager Vosburg asked Shawn Purvis, Deputy Town Manager, to present the 5 
Performance & Strategy Portfolio. 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 12 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 27] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 28] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 29] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 13 of 26 
 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if these were additional projects. 1 
 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said that these are additional.  2 
 3 
[SLIDE 30] 4 

  5 
Councilmember Gantt asked if the training and initiatives were cut back after 6 

negotiations. 7 
Deputy Town Manager Purvis said yes that they had worked with the departments.  8 
Town Manager Vosburg then asked Marty Stone, Assistant Town Manager, to come to 9 

give the presentation for the Development & Operations Portfolio.  10 
 11 

[SLIDE 31] 12 

 13 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 14 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 32] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 33] 3 

  4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked about the projects that are partial for this year and are 5 
going to be in next year’s budget.  6 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that these are the monies needed for this year 7 
for the current phase of the project. He said that they looked at projects that would not 8 
happen this year so that funding would not be included in this year’s budget.  9 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 15 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 34] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked about potential timeframes on the switching yard. 3 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that it was a CAMPO-led study, and he was not 4 
sure but could ask. 5 
 Councilmember Killingsworth asked if these types of studies would want to close 6 
crossings to increase speed. 7 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that would be a good assumption and that 8 
could come into play. 9 
[SLIDE 35] 10 

  11 
Town Manager Vosburg invited Demetria John, Assistant Town Manager, to give the 12 

presentation on the Community & Safety Portfolio.  13 
Assistant Town Manager John introduced her team and gave the following 14 

presentation: 15 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 16 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 36] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 37] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 38] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 17 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 39] 1 

  2 
[SLIDE 40] 3 

  4 
 Mayor Gilbert said that he liked this process and the presentation. He asked if there 5 
were any questions from Councilmembers. 6 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said she was glad about the transparency and 7 
openness of discussion and that it gives the picture of what is happening behind the scenes 8 
that is typically not seen, and she appreciates the recommendations.  9 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Gray said that this gives more of a perspective and direction and 10 
the opportunity to give Council what the departments need. He thanked the Town Manager 11 
and other staff for putting this together.  12 
 Councilmember Gantt said that the unfunded items in the past had scenarios within 13 
half-cent increments of tax rate options and asked if they would be doing that this year. 14 
 Town Manager Vosburg said that it had not been planned yet but they would bring 15 
that information to them if they wanted. 16 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that he was looking forward to seeing the budget 17 
book and he thanked the departments for the work on the budget. He said that a lot of 18 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 18 of 26 
 

sacrifices are being made, and he would keep that in mind while this budget was being 1 
contemplated. 2 
  3 
 Mayor Gilbert declared the meeting in recess at 4:45 p.m. and stated the meeting 4 
would continue in 15 minutes on the 3rd Floor in Training Rooms A and B.    5 

[DEBT MODELING FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER TOWN UTILITY]  6 
 7 
 Mayor Gilbert reconvened the meeting at 5:00 p.m.  8 
  9 
 Interim Finance Director Jessica Murphy-Rhem introduce Will Kerr, Raftelis 10 
Financial Consulting Inc. to give the following presentation 11 
[SLIDE 1] 12 

 13 
[SLIDE 2] 14 

 15 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 19 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 20 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
Councilmember Mahaffey asked what the deal bond was for water and sewer. 3 
Deputy Town Manager Purvis said that they could look it up. It depends on if that 4 

was the best interest rate that they could get at that time. He said it pre-dated everyone on 5 
staff now. 6 
[SLIDE 7] 7 

 8 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked what flexibility there is instead of the STF rates. 9 
 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said there is a prescription for how they have to be 10 
derived from the utility side. 11 
 Town Attorney Hohe said the calculation had the requirements built into it. 12 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if there was any flexibility in that calculation. 13 
 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that there are combined methods, for example 14 
looking at future projects that adds capacity. He gave an overview of what additional capacity 15 
would look like, and estimating costs based on capacity added. 16 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that the STF fund is occasionally revisited. 17 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 21 of 26 
 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that they have to be revisited every 5 years, but 1 
they can be revisited at any time.  2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked what factors affect the forecasts. He said that land use 3 
choices may affect the growth.  4 
 Mr. Kerr said land use planning doesn’t affect it and it is simpler from top level. 5 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the factors are real and whether they would have 6 
more town homes for single family homes in the future.  7 
 Mr. Kerr said yes density and use would have an impact in that regard. He said there 8 
are a lot of factors because there are other revenues.  9 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the different growth models could be one aspect. 10 
 Mr. Kerr said that it would consider large water users when working with infrastructure 11 
planning and larger operations like manufacturing plants are a different level for water 12 
demand.  13 
[SLIDE 8] 14 

 15 
[SLIDE 9] 16 

 17 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 22 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 10] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 11] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 12] 5 

 6 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 23 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 14] 3 

 4 
Councilmember Gantt asked what the average growth over the past 10 years was. 5 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 24 of 26 
 

Mr. Kerr said about 6%. He said this scenario is a bit more conservative than that. 1 
[SLIDE 15] 2 

 3 
[SLIDE 16] 4 

 5 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 25 of 26 
 

[SLIDE 17] 1 

 2 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if slow growth meant that the projects would get 3 
deleted because they wouldn’t be needed as soon. 4 
 Mr. Kerr said that is one of the limits that they are up against because they don’t have 5 
a CIP that is dynamic and adjusts itself. He said that it is more of a thought exercise and trying 6 
to look at the long-term picture.  7 
 Councilmember Killingsworth said this was more of an objective understanding of 8 
how growth affects us and how stopping growth would affect us.  9 
 Interim Director Murphy-Rhem said that the policies helped shape the projections 10 
and the all-in debt coverage ratio in Scenario 1D were 1.5 times lower around FY27, so with 11 
this scenario the target would not be met in the metrics. She said this was a very conservative 12 
scenario. 13 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the model from Planning would be going down over 14 
time in the growth rate. 15 
 Deputy Town Manager Purvis said that the real-life growth model is 80% residential. 16 
He said that the hope was that there was some non-residential growth. He said that in the 17 
scope of this and what has already been built or coming that they are comfortable with the 18 
3% range, and that the peak should be in a couple of years based on what is coming.  19 
 Director Deaton said that there is variability with the price of projects and 10 years in 20 
the future prices will change and go up. 21 
 Former Director Morrison said that this is a planning document, and it’s not set in 22 
stone and can be reviewed annually. 23 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said that he favored scenario 1A. He said that as costs are 24 
rising, and project costs are increasing, it may be good to do an STF evaluation every 5 years. 25 
He asked if the last study could be sent out again. 26 
 Mr. Kerr asked if there were any other questions.  27 
 Interim Director Murphy-Rhem said that scenario 1A is the lowest impact and they 28 
are looking for some guidance from Council. 29 



DRAFT | APRIL 15, 2025 TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

Page 26 of 26 
 

 Mayor Gilbert suggested 1A and called for a show of hands to see which 1 
councilmembers supported option 1A as presented by the consultant.   2 
 The following councilmembers said 1A:  Mayor Pro-Tempore Edward Gray, 3 
Councilmember Audra Killingsworth, and Councilmember Terry Mahaffey.  4 
 Councilmember Gantt suggested 1B. 5 
 Mayor Gilbert said that it sounded like the majority was 1A. 6 
 Councilmember Gantt said that it is hard to know how new developments would play 7 
out.   8 
 9 
 [ADJOURNEMENT]     10 

     11 
Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 5:48 p.m.  12 

    13 
Jacques K. Gilbert    14 

Apex, Mayor    15 
   16 
 Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC      17 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council      18 
     19 
Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman     20 
     21 
Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2025.     22 
  23 
 24 


